
Supported by:  

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Agenda 

Civic Centre,  
Arnot Hill Park,  

Arnold, 
Nottinghamshire,  

NG5 6LU 
 

 

 

 

 

Date: Monday 28 April 2025 

Time: 5.30 pm 

Place: Council Chamber 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Jane Ansell 

Community Investment Manager 

0115 901 3698 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 

 

Gedling Youth Council 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair Ryo Reynolds 
  

Vice-Chair Freddie Vokes 

 
Leyla Abass 
Aisha Ahmed 
Noor Ahmed 
Sara Agabani 
Jude Blakey 
Stella Clarke 
Finley Dunn 
Alex Eggleston 
Madiha Fahim 
Matilda Garland 
Poppy Greentree 
Tilda Hatton 
Emilioa Lane 
Scarlett Macfarlane 
Fatimah Malik 
Alex Millar 
Tish Phelps 
Emma Price 
Charlie Rose 
Chaneedigwa Singh 
Alex Truong 
Alex White 
Molly Wright 
Lydia Yates 
 
Councillor Kathryn Fox - Portfolio Holder for Life Chances and 
Vulnerability 
 
Councillor Sandra Barnes - Policy advisor for Vulnerable People  

 
 



 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Page 

 

    

1   Welcome, apologies received. 
 

 

2   Icebreaker, to be put forward by the Chair. 
 

 

3   Minutes of the last meeting held on Monday 17th February 2024. 
 

5 - 7 

4   Items raised by Members in the Youth Council Group Chat. 
 

 

5   Youth Mayor Updates, including nomination of incoming Youth Mayor 
2025/2026. 
 

 

6   Gedling Social Mobility Commission: 
 

 

 Updates from Youth Council representative Fatimah Malik, if any are available. 
 

 

7   Standing Item: Opportunities for Youth Council / Youth Mayor 
Promotion and Communications 
 

 

 Key issues, initiatives, upcoming Awareness Days/Weeks/Months. (Anthony 
Moore, GBC Communications). 
 

 

8   Guest Speaker: 
 

9 - 16 

  Kate Lindley, GBC Director of Transformation: Gedling Constitution and 
Engagemet Strategy: Consultation period ends 2nd May. Please see link to the 
consulation here: 

 Consultation and Engagement Strategy - Gedling Borough Council 

 
Draft GBC Consultation and Engagement Strategy attached: Appendix 1. 
 

 

9   Future guest speakers and areas of interest. 
 

 

 Upcoming Council Consultations and other developments. 
 

 

10   Amy Beckworth: 
 

 

  Update on YC Members aged 16 over members Focus Group with Hilary Brown 
of Phenomenal Futures. 

 NCC Youth Service updates. 

 

 

https://www.gedling.gov.uk/haveyoursay/consultationandengagementstrategy/


 
 

11   Social session and refreshments in the Beeston Room at 7:00pm. 
 

 

12   Date of next meeting: Monday 28th July. 
 

 

 Forward meeting dates: 
 
2025: 22nd September, 3rd November 
 
2026: 23rd February 
 

 



Minutes of the Gedling Youth Council meeting held on 17th February 2025 

 

In Attendance: Tilda Hatton, Fatimah Malik, Leyla Abass, Tish Phelps, Matilda 
Garland, Alex Truong, Alex Eggleston, Lydia Yates, Emma Price, Evelyn Parker   
Cllrs Fox and Barnes, Jane Ansell. 

Guest speakers: Ben Haig, Norma Gregory, Claire Nunn (Heritage, Economic 
Growth and Regeneration and Visitor Economy Strategies Consultants as listed 
at item 7 in these minutes); Sade Thomas (Nottm and Notts Violence Reduction 
Partnership); Christina Barbian (NCVS/’Runspire’); Sergeant Alison Riley and PC 
Michael Callan the Gedling North Policing Team.  

 

1. Welcome, apologies received  

 Apologies received from Freddie Vokes, Stella Clarke, Charlie Rose, Sarah 
Agabani, Molly Wright, incoming new members Aphena, Rakesh, Noor 

Ahmed; Amy Beckworth (NCC Youth Service), Anthony Moore (GBC 
Communications). 

 
1. Icebreaker 
 Members introduced themselves and completed an icebreaker: ‘Why did you 

join the Youth Council?’ 
 

2. Minutes of the last meeting held on Monday 11th November 2024  

 Minutes were accepted as true record by all members present 
 

3. Items raised in the youth council group chat  
 
Communication had been made regarding the proposed over 16s workshop with 
Hilary Brown of Phenomenal Futures, taking place on 24th February, 6pm at Arnot 
Hill House.  
 
ACTION: Amy Beckworth to provide final confirmation of arrangements in the group 
chat. 
 
ACTION: Amy to add new members to the group chat, once she has all the parental 
consent forms returned to her.   
 
ACTION: JA advised new members to bring their completed consent forms to the 
next meeting in April, when Amy will be present to receive them. 
 

4. Youth Mayor updates  
 In Youth Mayor Stella Clarke’s absence. Cllr Fox remarked on both Stella and 

Charlie Rose’s positive input to the Carlton Towns Board to date. 
.  
5. Gedling Social Mobility Commission  

 Fatimah shared feedback on her induction to the Social Mobility Commission, 
and her intention to act as a conduit for input to the Commission from wider 
Youth Council members and young people generally.  

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



6. Standing item: Communications 

 In Anthony Moore’s absence, Cllr Fox remarked on the positive plans for 
Youth Mayor social media championship of International Women’s Day 8th 
March.   

 
7. Guest speakers:  

 
Ben Haig, Focus Consultants: Gedling Economic Growth and Visitor 
Economy Strategies  

Norma Gregory, Heritage Practitioner and Claire Nunn, HayleySharpe 
Consultants:  Gedling Heritage Strategy 

Sade Thomas and/or Lucy Lyndsay (TBC) - Community Engagement 
Officers, Nottingham and Nottinghamshire Violence Reduction Partnership: 
Violence against Women and Girls / emerging threats to young people’s 
safety, resources and advice for communities and young people. 

Christina Barbian, Nottingham CVS: ‘Runspire’ Young People’s Sports, 
Health and Wellbeing initiative 

Due to the absence of Chair Freddie Vokes and Youth Mayor Stella Clarke, Lydia 
Yates, Secretary and Vice Chair, had to step into the Chair and was therefore unable 
to minute these discussions in detail, however an overview is provided as follows: 
 
Ben Haig gave an overview of the Economic Growth and Visitor Economy 
Strategies and received some thought-provoking responses from members on 
concerns and ideas for town centres, encouraging economic growth and the young 
people factor.  
 
An interactive session was delivered by Norma and Clare in the Beeston Room 
covering factors around what Heritage means to young people, and how that can 
be integrated into the Council’s Heritage Strategy. 
 
Christian Barbian of ‘Runspire’ engaged members in an online interactive survey 
using their phones to vote on their health and wellbeing behaviours, preferred 
activities for wellbeing, and ways of reaching young people with wellbeing advice 
and services. 
 
Members shared their local in and out of school safety concerns and observations 
with the two Police representatives, and there was unanimous support to revisit 
Police Officer engagement within PHSE and Assembly sessions in local schools. 
Sergeant Riley pledged to raise this within the Policing Teams and identify what 
resources could be made available, recognising that public services are all very 
stretched at present.   
 
Sade Thomas gave a presentation about the role of the Nottingham and 
Nottinghamshire Violence Reduction Partnership and her own role in engaging 
with young people. After the meeting, Sade shared a list of projects and ways in 
which young people can participate, as follows: 
 

Page 6



Some of the ways young people can get involved: 

- Youth Charter support - We want young people to assess environments that 
should be a place of safety for young people. 

- Supporting with our research – Hearing from young people to understand 
issues identified and what solutions are needed . (This will be extremely 
helpful regarding identifying our topic for the Youth Led Conference) 

- We want young people to be part of the planning team of our youth led 
conference, which will be led by young people for young people -  aimed at 
amplifying young people to have a platform.  

- Normalising Behaviour Campaign – We are looking for groups of young 
people to produce a campaign around youth safety in relation to places of 
safety in Nottingham City and County. 

- Melissa Adler - Children’s Society Research – Partake in research around 
gender and exploitation.  

  
All guests pledged to take back all input received from Members at the meeting to 
inform and shape their ongoing work in Gedling and were thanked by the Chair for 
their time and attendance. 
 

8. Update on countywide youth parliament: Amy Beckworth  
 
Item deferred, as Amy was not present. 
 

9. Any other business  
 
Councillor Fox presented a pre prepared Letter of Support from the Youth Council for 
the development of Young People’s recreational and physical activity facilities at St 
Marys Park in Arnold, which included support for Special Educational Needs friendly 
facilities and design.  
 
AGREED: That Lydia Yates, Acting Chair, would sign the letter of support on behalf 
of the Chair and Youth Mayor. The letter would then be sent to St Mary’s 
Redevelopment Group secretary Cllr Kyle Robinson Payne.  
 
Future meeting dates:  
 
2025  
 
28th April  
 
Forward dates beyond April will be added to the agenda of the next meeting. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Consultation 
and Engagement 
Strategy 

DOCUMENT CONTROL
Version control number: 1:0
Date approved:	 Approved by:
Date of next review:	
Job title of responsible officer:

Serving people, Improving lives

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



From emptying bins, ensuring food safety, helping people to avoid 
homelessness, managing planning applications, enabling recycling 
and more, every day the Council takes decisions and provides 
services that impact people’s lives.

While our councillors are democratically accountable to the 
electorate via the ballot box, we understand that to meet our 
vision of ‘serving people, improving lives’ there is a need to 
consult and engage our communities in a meaningful way so 
that their needs and feedback are considered in the decisions 
that we make, enabling us to achieve better outcomes 
together.

In recent years the Council, like most authorities, has faced 
ongoing financial pressures because of the combination of 
increased demand for services and reduced funding from central 
government. This has meant that we have had to make difficult 
decisions to scale back aspects of community engagement outside of the 
legal necessities.

While these challenges remain, in defining this Strategy we want to set a clear intent to engage 
meaningfully and to go beyond what is legally required of us where we can, so that we involve our 
communities more in changes that affect them.

We don’t promise that consultation and engagement is easy or will always lead to our communities getting 
everything that they want – that’s clearly not realistic in the current economic climate.  What we do promise 
is that we will continually seek to improve how we engage with our communities, so that we meet our legal 
obligations, and we will seek to go further where there is benefit to outcomes in doing so and where we can 
achieve this within available resources.  We commit to being honest about the ‘tough stuff’ and to doing this 
inclusively so that our decisions are well informed and impacts properly understood.

The Council is committed to consultation and engagement that is a genuine two-way process, making 
it clear what can be influenced, and what can’t, giving the people we serve, employ and work with an 
opportunity to influence decisions that affect them in a way that is accessible for them.

We won’t always get it right – no organisation does – what we hope in designing this strategy is that we 
provide clarity on our intent – and a consistent framework for the delivery of it.

Foreword

Mike Hill, Chief Executive

Page 10



The purpose of this strategy is to set out the strategic vision and framework for consultation across the 
Council, and to make clear where consultation and engagement fit within the context of service design, policy 
and service change.

The strategy applies to the whole Council and all service areas within it.  It seeks to complement rather than 
to replicate or replace statutory consultation requirements within individual service areas.  The strategy covers 
both external and internal consultation.

Why do we consult?
Gedling’s vision is to ‘serve people and improve lives’.  

As a public authority, it is important that Gedling’s services are shaped by the needs of the people who use 
them, within the overall budgetary, legal and operational constraints within which the Council must operate. 
This does not mean that the Council will consult or engage on everything – doing so would not be affordable, 
reasonable or pragmatic, but it is important that the Council consults meaningfully in relation to major changes 
before decisions are made.

The benefits of consulting and engaging with communities, residents, local businesses, employees and other 
key stakeholders include:

What do we mean by consultation and how does it differ from engagement?
Consultation and engagement are subtly different concepts but follow a similar process and may involve the 
same people.  

Consultation is the process of seeking feedback so that the Council can take well informed decisions.  The 
decision-making power rests with the Council.

Engagement is a more interactive process that encourages dialogue and collaboration and may include co-
designing outputs, sharing power between the Council and those involved.

Some parts of the Council, in particular, planning, have a statutory duty to consult and must do this in a 
particular way, while for most services, the Council has a choice in how it chooses to consult and engage. 

The aim of this Strategy is not to replicate or to replace existing statutory duties within specific service areas, 
but to complement these by creating a framework for consultation that applies across the Council as a whole. 
As an example, Gedling’s Statement of Community Involvement is separate, but aligned to this strategy and 
forms part of the statutory planning process.

Purpose

Scope

• Improved trust between the Council and the communities it serves.

• Enablement of evidence-based decision making.

• Support for improvements to customer-centric service delivery by engaging users of
services in the design of services to meet their needs.

• Ability to gain multiple perspectives so that any unintended consequences or potential
differential impacts can be properly understood before decisions are taken.

Page 11

https://www.gedling.gov.uk/media/gedlingboroughcouncil/documents/planningpolicy/documents/GBC%20SCI%20FINAL%202019.pdf


When must the Council consult?
Broadly, there are three circumstances in which the Council must consult. 

When there is an express duty to consult: 
This applies where there is a legal requirement to consult before the Council takes a decision. For example:

The express duty to consult arises where there is a statutory requirement to consult that is specifically required 
in law. Statutory consultations often include strict rules, guidelines and prescribed methods of consultation, for 
example changes to car parking orders or the disposal of land which requires publication in a local newspaper. 

The legislation setting out these requirements may not always reflect the modern methods of communication and 
engagement that are now available to the Council.  Where this is the case, while meeting the statutory requirement, 
the Council may seek to use additional consultation mechanisms.  Any such consultation will be undertaken in line 
with this strategy.

When there is a legitimate expectation:
This applies where the Council has set an expectation of consultation, which then must be fulfilled. Legitimate 
expectation applies where the Council has promised that it will consult on a specific issue.  A legitimate expectation 
can arise from an explicit or implicit promise that has been made. An explicit promise means that the Council has 
said publicly that it will consult, so is required to follow through on that promise.  Promises can be implicit where 
there is well established custom and practice in place and sustained regularly over a period of time that is usually 
followed and could legitimately be expected as a result.

To ensure fairness.
While there is no common law duty to consult, councils do have a common law duty to act fairly. To test if 
consultation is required, the Council will consider the impact of the decision it needs to make on those affected by 
it. As a rule, if there are serious consequences likely because of the decision, there is likely to be an expectation 
of consultation before the decision is made to ensure fairness is achieved.  This type of consultation would apply 
where there is a proposal to withdraw a particular service that has public impact for example.

To comply with wider statutory duties and responsibilities:
While there may not be an express statutory duty to consult on a specific decision, policy or plan, there are wider 
statutory requirements in place such as the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under the Equality Act 2010, that 
mean consultation and engagement may be required. The PSED duty supports good decision-making by helping 
decision-makers understand how their activities affect people with protected characteristics. The duty requires 
decision-makers to understand and take account of the consequences of their choices, having due regard to the 
aim of eliminating conduct prohibited by the Equality Act, advancing equality of opportunity and fostering good 
relations.

a. As a local planning authority, Gedling is required to undertake a formal
period of public consultation, prior to deciding a planning application.

b. Local planning authorities in England are also required to undertake
public consultation when formulating planning policy such as a Local Plan or
Supplementary Planning Documents.

c. Local authorities (in their role as a best value authority) are required to
consult before making decisions about achieving best value.

Page 12



Beyond circumstances where there is a legal necessity to consult, the Council has a choice about how it consults 
and engages with local stakeholders including residents, businesses, partners and others, to shape service 
delivery, strategy and policy development. 

Gedling recognises that through effective consultation and engagement, the Council can better understand local 
priorities and needs and can build trust with the people it serves through actively engaging them in influencing 
service design and delivery.  Alongside the use of operational and strategic data, this enables the Council to adapt 
and improve its services and ways of working to better meet local needs. 

Where there is not a legal necessity to consult, but where there is potential benefit, as a result of engaging with 
stakeholders, the Council will consider the extent to which consultation is possible taking into account:

The Council’s vision for consultation is: 

“To ensure Gedling operates lawfully in relation to required consultation and creates 
meaningful and accessible additional opportunities for consultation and engagement 
where outcomes can be improved by doing so, and where resources allow.”

At its most basic there are 7 steps involved in any consultation:

• How meaningful will the consultation be?
The Council recognises that people’s time is precious, and that trust comes from transparency.
For these reasons, we will consult only where stakeholders are able to have meaningful
influence and where the impact of the consultation is likely to have significant benefit to the end
outcome.

• Is meaningful consultation achievable within the available resources
and timescale?  The Council’s budget position means that there are no dedicated
resources for consultation outside of what is required to maintain its legal
obligations. We need to ensure that where consultation activity takes place, it is meaningful,
which in turn means it needs to be appropriately resourced and achievable.

Vision for consultation 

How the Council consults 
and engages

Step 1: Determine the subject of the consultation.

Step 2: Determine if it is a mandatory consultation required by law (this informs the structure and design 
at Step 4).

Step 3: Decide who needs to be consulted with using data wherever possible (for some statutory 
consultations this may be prescribed by law, otherwise, it will usually be determined by 			
who might be impacted by the decision or proposed change).

Step 4: Design the process ensuring a targeted approach (for statutory consultation, this will include 		
consideration of the design of a lawful process in line with statutory requirements. For 			
and for other forms of consultation, this will align to the law and the requirements of this Strategy). 
In all instances the process should be accessible to those it seeks to engage.

Page 13



At its most basic, there are four different types of consultation or engagement ranging from low involvement 
(information sharing) to high involvement (co-production).

Each type of consultation and engagement is explained in more detail below.

This applies where there is a legal necessity to consult and will usually follow a process that is set out in law.  
Examples of this include consultation on the Local Plan and on planning applications, where the Council proposes 
major changes to provision of its services, or where there are changes to people’s jobs internally.

Our approach to consultation 
and engagement

Statutory consultation 

Statutory consultation Consultation or 
engagement

Co-production Information sharing

• Applies to statutory
consultation processes.

• Affordability and
resource constraints are
not a consideration.

• “Must do” activity for the
council to operate lawfully

• Where the council
is not legally required
to consult or engage
but chooses to do so
because there is benefit
to outcomes in doing so.

• Considered only
where it is meaningful to
engage and only where
resources allow.

• A form of
engagement, using the
same criteria, specifically
designed to engage
users of services in the
design of those services
and / or strategy and
policy relating to them.

• The lowest level of
engagement, one way
sharing of information to
ensure awareness

Step 5: Carry out the consultation.

Step 6: Analyse the consultation feedback, including assessing whether the responses to the 			
consultation indicate that there might be 	different impacts on different groups of people before any 
decisions are made (e.g. Older people, people with a disability).

Step 7: Feed back to those involved, either directly, or indirectly by publishing the outcome of the 			
consultation and related decisions made to ‘close the loop’, making it clear what has been done as 
a result of people’s input.

Page 14



This is where there is not a statutory necessity to consult or engage, but where the Council chooses to do so 
because there is a benefit to outcomes in doing so, where consultation and engagement is meaningful and can be 
achieved within available resources.

Examples of this type of consultation and engagement might include resident surveys about local priorities and 
views of the Council, customer forums that seek feedback on services or targeted engagement around specific 
proposed service improvements.

Co-production is part of non-statutory consultation and engagement and involves a degree of power sharing 
with those involved.  Co-production may be used where the Council is seeking to make changes to how services 
are delivered at a detailed level and where engagement of users of those services in the design would have a 
potentially significant benefit on the outcomes being sought.  Examples of this might include co-production of new 
digital services for residents (where by designing services with users, uptake of those services may be more likely to 
increase) or engagement with partners in relation to shared, co-designed policies.

Information sharing is the lowest level of engagement and involves providing information to stakeholders about the 
Council’s services, policies and decisions to ensure people are kept well informed.  It also includes meeting the 
requirements of the Local Government Transparency Code.

By sharing information, the Council aims to ensure that residents and businesses are well informed and can 
get involved in wider engagement activities should they wish to do so.  Examples of information sharing include 
publication of data and service information on the Council website, newsletters, media releases and social media 
posts.

The following principles are built on best practice consultation and engagement expectations:

Once we have decided to consult or engage, we will seek to ensure fairness and transparency by:

Non statutory consultation 
or engagement

Co-production

Information sharing 

Consultation and engagement 
principles

1. Ensuring we comply with all relevant legislation, including data protection
requirements.

2. Actively targeting our consultation and engagement activity to people that evidence
tells us are likely to be impacted by the proposed change.

3. Carrying out consultation or engagement when proposals or designs are still at a
formative stage.

4. Providing enough information for consultees or those being engaged to enable
intelligent consideration.

Page 15



This Strategy will be approved by Cabinet and reviewed no less frequently than every two years.

The Council’s Monitoring Officer will be responsible for Strategy implementation and monitoring of adherence to it.

Directors will be responsible for recommending formal consultations to individual Portfolio Holders.

Portfolio Holders will be responsible for approving all formal consultation activity.

Directors and Assistant Directors will be responsible for ensuring adherence to the Strategy once approved and for 
ensuring staff are trained in relation to it.

Communications will be responsible for providing planning and delivery support to encourage people to engage in 
consultation and engagement activity where appropriate.

HR will be responsible for the co-ordination of relevant training.

The key deliverables of strategy will be the effective consultation and engagement activity resulting from it.

In addition, to support the embedding of the Strategy across the Council, the Council will roll out, during 2025/26:

5. Ensuring information is understandable by those being consulted or engaged.

6. Ensuring an inclusive process, accessible to all of those in scope for consultation or
engagement.

7. Using the most appropriate engagement mechanisms to meet people’s needs.

8. Giving enough time for consultation/engagement and response.

9. Timing consultation and engagement carefully to avoid periods where it may be
difficult to reach people, where there are several consultations already underway, or
during pre-election periods for example.

10. Carefully considering all views, taking these into account when the final decision or
decisions are made.

11. Considering the output of consultation alongside wider strategic impacts including
but not limited to financial, social, environmental and potential equalities impacts.

12. Continually learning from our activities to make ongoing improvements to how we
consult and engage based on ongoing feedback.

Roles and responsibilities

Key deliverables

• A refreshed Consultation and Engagement toolkit for internal use.

• Appropriate training and support for managers across the Council.

Page 16


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting held on Monday 17th February 2024.
	8 Guest Speaker:

